
 
 

 
 

STRATEGIC PLANNING ADVISORY 
PANEL  

 

TUESDAY 1 MARCH 2005 
7.30 PM  

 
PANEL AGENDA (ADVISORY) 

 
COMMITTEE ROOMS 1 AND 2, 

HARROW CIVIC CENTRE 
 
 

 
  MEMBERSHIP    (Quorum 3)  
 
    
 
  Chair: 

 
Councillor Burchell 

 
Councillors: 

 
Idaikkadar 
N Shah 
Anne Whitehead (VC) 
 

Marilyn Ashton 
Mrs Bath 
Mrs Kinnear 
 

John Branch 
(non-voting co-optee)

 

 
 

Reserve Members: 
 

1. Blann 
2. Bluston 
3. Ray 
4. Miles 
 

1. Kara 
2. Versallion 
3. Harriss 
 

  

 
Issued by the Democratic Services Section, 

Legal Services Department  
 
Contact:  Kate Boulter, Committee Administrator 
Tel:  020 8424 1269    E-mail:  kate.boulter@harrow.gov.uk 

 
NOTE FOR THOSE ATTENDING THE MEETING: 

IF YOU WISH TO DISPOSE OF THIS AGENDA, PLEASE LEAVE IT BEHIND AFTER THE MEETING. 
 IT WILL BE COLLECTED FOR RECYCLING. 



 

 

 
  HARROW COUNCIL 

 
STRATEGIC PLANNING ADVISORY PANEL  
 
TUESDAY 1 MARCH 2005 
 

 
 

  AGENDA - PART I   
 

1. Attendance by Reserve Members:    
 To note the attendance at this meeting of any duly appointed Reserve 

Members. 
 
Reserve Members may attend meetings:- 
 
(i) to take the place of an ordinary Member for whom they are a reserve; 
(ii) where the ordinary Member will be absent for the whole of the 

meeting; and  
(iii) after notifying the Chair at the start of the meeting. 
 

2. Declarations of Interest:    
 To receive declarations of personal or prejudicial interests, arising from 

business to be transacted at this meeting, from all Members present. 
 

3. Arrangement of Agenda:    
 To consider whether any of the items listed on the agenda should be 

considered with the press and public excluded on the grounds that it is 
thought likely, in view of the nature of the business to be transacted, that 
there would be disclosure of confidential information in breach of an 
obligation of confidence or of exempt information as defined in the Local 
Government (Access to Information) Act 1985. 
 

4. Minutes:  (Pages 1 - 6) Enc. 
 That the minutes of the meeting held on 2 December 2004 having been 

circulated, be taken as read and signed as a correct record. 
 

5. Public Questions:    
 To receive questions (if any) from local residents or organisations under the 

provisions of Advisory Panel and Consultative Forum Procedure Rule 15 
(Part 4E of the Constitution). 
 

6. Petitions:    
 To receive petitions (if any) submitted by members of the public/Councillors 

under the provisions of Advisory Panel and Consultative Forum Procedure 
Rule 13 (Part 4E of the Constitution). 
 

7. Deputations:    
 To receive deputations (if any) under the provisions of Advisory Panel and 

Consultative Forum Procedure Rule 14 (Part 4E of the Constitution). 
 

8. Local Development Scheme:   Enc. 
 Report of the Director of Strategy (Urban Living). 

 
  AGENDA - PART II (PRESS AND PUBLIC EXCLUDED) - NIL   



 

 

 
  Proposed Officer attendance at this meeting 

Jessica Farmer – Senior Assistant Solicitor (Planning) 
Bill Munro – Section Manager (Forward and Local Planning) 
Dennis Varcoe – Group Planner (Forward and Local Planning) 
Phil Greenwood – Group Planner (Local Planning)   
 



This page is intentionally left blank



CABINET  VOL. 7  CSPAP 1  

STRATEGIC PLANNING ADVISORY PANEL  2 DECEMBER 2004 

Chair: * Councillor Burchell 
   
Councillors: * Marilyn Ashton 

* Mrs Bath 
* Idaikkadar 

* Mrs Kinnear 
* N Shah 
* Anne Whitehead 

Non-voting 
Co-opted Member: 

* Councillor Branch (See Minute 11) 

* Denotes Member present 

PART I - RECOMMENDATIONS PART I - RECOMMENDATIONS 

RECOMMENDATION 1 - Revised Terms of Reference

Cabinet, at its meeting held on 29 July 2004, had re-titled the UDP Advisory Panel as 
the Strategic Planning Advisory Panel in order to reflect the recent changes to the 
Planning System. 

In order to reflect its new duties, the Strategic Planning Advisory Panel, at its meeting 
held on 2 December 2004, agreed its revised terms of reference and  

Resolved to RECOMMEND: (To Cabinet)

That the revised terms of reference set out below be agreed: 

1. To give detailed consideration to and make recommendations in respect of: 

(a) the Local Development Framework and its Development Plan 
Documents and matters incidental thereto; 

(b) representations received to Development Plan Documents and any 
amendments proposed; 

(c) monitoring the implementation of the Framework, its review and 
modification as necessary. 

2. To make recommendations in respect of the development of such individual 
sites as may be referred to the Panel by the Cabinet. 

3. To give detailed consideration and to make recommendations in respect of all 
other planning policy matters such as the designation of Conservation Areas 
and amendments to their boundaries and the designation of locally listed 
buildings.

[REASON:  To ensure that the Panel’s Terms of Reference reflect its new remit]. 

RECOMMENDATION 2 - Developing the Local Development Framework in Harrow 
- Draft Local Development Scheme

The Director of Strategy (Urban Living) briefed Members on her report and thanked her 
staff for producing the draft Local Development Scheme (LDS) within a short timescale. 
She reported that the deadline for submission of the LDS to the Government Office for 
London (GOL) had changed and that it had been extended from December 2004 to 
31 March 2005. 

The Director of Strategy (Urban Living) identified the Council’s priorities in the LDS and 
how these would be achieved, details of which were set out in her report. She added 
that there was no statutory requirement to involve the community in the production of 
the LDS and that officers hoped to provide information on the Local Development 
Framework (LDF) via the website and other mediums. 

In response to a number of questions from Members, the Director of Strategy (Urban 
Living) explained how: 

• the community would be engaged with a view to identifying their needs for 
inclusion in the LDS. As the timescales to ensure total engagement with the 
community were tight, the Plan would be developed incrementally.  The King’s 
Cross model - mentioned by a Member – was noted as an excellent example 

Agenda Item 4
Pages 1 to 6

1



CSPAP 2  VOL. 7 CABINET

of engaging with the community to accept change rather than imposing 
change; however, community involvement at King’s Cross had been developed 
over a number of years. 

• Members would be involved. It was proposed to hold a workshop on 1 March 
2005 to allow Members to discuss the LDF proposals prior to finalising and 
issuing the document to GOL. 

A Member stated that she was concerned about the process and the requirement to 
conform generally to the London Plan, which, in her opinion, was not suitable for 
Harrow. 

The Panel was informed that:  

• all policies in the saved HUDP would eventually be replaced by the LDF and 
that it was important to ensure that there were no delays in meeting the 
deadline; 

• the expertise of the Community Engagement Team which was based in the 
Organisational Development Directorate would be utilised, together with 
expertise in other Council service areas, to assist the LDF team. 

A Member suggested more frequent meetings of this Panel to ensure that Members 
had an opportunity to address all issues. 

Following further discussion on community engagement, the Panel agreed that a 
briefing paper rather than the detailed LDS should be available for comment through 
the Council’s website and that articles - inviting comments - should be posted in the 
local newspapers.  The full LDS would be available to anyone who wanted to receive a 
copy and it would also be accessible on the website. 

The Panel also agreed that Members of the Development Control Committee be invited 
to participate in the Workshop scheduled to be held on 1 March 2005 at 6.30 pm.  The 
Panel agreed the following programme: 

1 March 2005
6.30 pm  – Refreshments 
6.30 – 7.00 pm – Workshop ‘The Local Development Scheme’ 
7.30 pm onwards – Meeting of the Strategic Planning Advisory Panel. 

Resolved to RECOMMEND:  (To Portfolio Holder)

(1)  That the priorities and programme identified in the draft LDS, attached to the officer 
report, be endorsed; 

(2)  that a briefing paper on the LDF and the timetable for production be made available 
for public comment, in addition to the LDS document being posted on the Council’s 
website; 

(3)  that the briefing paper be circulated to Members for comments; 

(4)  that the comments received, referred to in resolutions (2) and (3) above, be 
considered by a meeting of the Panel to be held on 1 March 2005 in order to allow the 
Panel to submit the LDS for approval by Cabinet prior to its submission to the 
Government Office for London (GOL) by 31 March 2005; 

(5)  that a workshop be held on 1 March 2005 on the new LDF system to include 
Members of Development Control, prior to the formal meeting of the Panel.  

[REASON:  The Local Development Scheme is required to be approved by Cabinet 
prior to submission to the Government Office for London by 31 March 2005.  
Submission of the LDS by the set deadline, the priorities included and the delivery of 
the programme set out in the LDS are important elements of Planning Delivery Grant.  
Public involvement on the draft is seen as a positive start to the LDF process]. 

2



CABINET  VOL. 7  CSPAP 3  

PART II - MINUTES 

1. Appointment of Chair:

RESOLVED:  To note the appointment of Councillor Burchell as Chair of the Strategic 
Planning Advisory Panel for the remainder of the 2004/2005 Municipal Year, as agreed 
at the Cabinet meeting of 11 November 2004. 

2. Attendance by Reserve Members:

RESOLVED:  To note that there were no Reserve Members in attendance at this 
meeting.

3. Declarations of Interest:

RESOLVED:  To note that there were no declarations of interests made by Members in 
relation to the business transacted at this meeting. 

4. Appointment of Vice-Chair:
Councillor Anne Whitehead was nominated and seconded.  Councillor Marilyn Ashton 
was nominated and seconded.  Upon being put to a vote, it was 

RESOLVED:  That Councillor Anne Whitehead be appointed Vice-Chair of the Panel 
for the remainder of the 2004/2005 Municipal Year. 

5. Arrangement of Agenda:   

RESOLVED:  That all items be considered with the press and public present. 

6. Minutes:

RESOLVED:  That the minutes of the meeting of the Unitary Development Plan 
Advisory Panel (being the predecessor body to the Strategic Planning Advisory Panel) 
held on 8 July 2004, having been circulated, be taken as read and signed as a correct 
record. 

7. Public Questions:

RESOLVED:  To note that there were no public questions to be received at this 
meeting under the provisions of the Advisory Panel and Consultative Forum Procedure 
Rule 15 (Part 4E of the Constitution). 

8. Petitions:

RESOLVED:  To note that there were no petitions to be received at this meeting under 
the provisions of the Advisory Panel and Consultative Forum Procedure Rule 13 
(Part 4E of the Constitution). 

9. Deputations:

RESOLVED:  To note that there were no deputations to be received at this meeting 
under the provisions of Advisory Panel and Consultative Forum Procedure Rule 14 
(Part 4E of the Constitution). 

10. Revised Terms of Reference:
See Recommendation 1 above. 

11. Appointment of Co-opted Member:   

RESOLVED:  That Councillor Branch be appointed as a non-voting co-optee on the 
Panel.

12. Land at Honeypot Lane - Development Brief:
The Director of Strategic Planning introduced his report and advised Members that he 
could no longer recommend approval of the Development Brief for land at Honeypot 
Lane, Stanmore, attached as Appendix 1 to the report, for the following reasons: 

• the stance taken by the Environment Agency on flood risk and the possibility 
that a significant part of this site might not be available for development; 

• to allow officers to assess the impact on traffic of the planning application 
received for the site, to ascertain the access arrangements and to allow the 

3



CSPAP 4  VOL. 7 CABINET

negotiations between the developer and the Environment Agency, which were 
at an advanced stage, to be concluded; 

• the recently available information that the owners of a major part of the site, 
subject to the current planning application, had an option to purchase the area 
to be vacated in the New Year by the Office of Government Commerce. 

The Chair stated that approval of the development brief ought to be deferred to allow 
officers to take account of the issues above and the following additional matter: 

• provision of health and education in the area. 

In response to questions from Members, the Director of Strategic Planning stated that: 

• the planning brief referred to above could not be agreed until the Council had 
reviewed the access arrangements; 

• the planning brief ought to be agreed prior to a decision being taken on the 
planning application received; 

• the revised brief would be submitted to the March 2005 meeting of the Panel; 

• the owners of the site were in negotiations with the Environment Agency and 
that they were looking at ways of dealing with the flood risk which would not 
prejudice the development potential of the site; 

• more sophisticated models were now being used by the Environment Agency 
to determine/forecast flood requirements more accurately than had previously 
been the case; and this had resulted in the Agency taking a more 
precautionary approach on this particular site in response to the submitted 
application; 

• the public would be re-consulted on the brief should there be significant 
changes in either the mix of uses or the quantum of development arising from 
the outcome of the further work outlined. 

Members made the following observations: 

• that the approval of the brief before the Panel that evening could lead to 
development on a piecemeal basis of the site which was undesirable; 

• that the views of the Environment Agency needed to be resolved prior to 
approval of the brief; 

• that in any development of the site, the existing trees and gardens ought to be 
retained and that the planting of additional trees – in particular willow trees – 
ought to be a prime consideration in the brief; 

• that the sophisticated modelling exercises used by the Environment Agency 
may well impact on the number of properties built; 

• that with global warming, the approach being taken by the Environment 
Agency should be seen positively. 

Members asked to be kept informed at all times of the progress in the negotiations 
between the developer and the Environment Agency which were underway, and 

RESOLVED:  To defer approval of the Development Brief for land at Honeypot Lane, 
Stanmore.

13. Developing the Local Development Framework in Harrow - Draft Local 
Development Scheme:
See Recommendation 2 above. 

14. Any Other Business:

(i) Training for Members of the Development Control Committee
The Director of Strategic Planning reported that Members of the Development 
Control Committee would be trained on the Local Development Framework 
(LDF) between now and 1 March 2005 and the session would be made 
available to other interested Members. 

4



CABINET  VOL. 7  CSPAP 5  

A Member commented on the large number of training sessions being held for 
Members and the need for officers to avoid clashes where possible.  

RESOLVED:  To note that Members of the Development Control Committee 
would be trained on the LDF. 

(ii) Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 – A Brief Guide

RESOLVED:  To note that ‘Planning Notes’ in relation to the above-mentioned 
Act were circulated to Members for information. 

(Note:  The meeting having commenced at 7.30 pm, closed at 8.47 pm) 

(Signed) COUNCILLOR KEITH BURCHELL 
Chair 

5



6

This page is intentionally left blank


